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In 1805 an old Quaker gentleman by the name of Joleph Caldwell
cmigrated. with hil !hmily. from North Carolina and settIod on
what is now known as Section 9 Israel Twp.

In 1832 his son Jonathan laid out Fair Haven and bad it recorded
on Aprd120, of that year. At that time thw western part of the
village was a beautiful grove of sugar maples while the eastern
part was an elm swamp.

Soon after the village was laid out a log tavern was buzlt.
Since the village was on the direct road to Oinoinnati nans man
ald Conestoga Wagons stoppoa at the little tavemrn. :

Fermers in south eastern Indiana and south wesrten Ohio took
their hogs, sheep, and produce to market over this route. The
-oonestoga wagons loaded with these things, were drawn by 4,6,8,

. or sometines 10 horses with large fur collars and ayches of bells.
‘The bells were fastened on the hames. :

It was the common law of the road at that time that if one
wagon got stuck in the mud another teemester could not pass him
up but must stop and try to help. The one that was stuck must
unhitoh his team and allow the other man to hitob his team to the
wagon and then if he sucoeeded in pulling the wagon out he got the
bells from the first man's horses.

Every night the tavern entertainedmany of these men and immense
numbers of pogs and sheep were cared for in the barnyard. 4is travel
kept increasing Mr. Hiram'Evans‘replaood“tho 1ittle log tavern
with the commodius brieck building known as Bunker Hill Tavern.

It was a rambling 0ld atructure of many rooms, three stories

high. The post boys rooms, bardly bigger than a oloset, were titcked



under the eves at the baok of the bouse. There wes a handsome
atairwaﬁ asoending to the third floor. The long bsrroom on the
firat rloor wag & eymbol of bospitality ana good cheer. The egqually
largo and spacious ball room on the oeoond floor often rang to
; tho_tront;or musio end the thump of square dancers or the more
}/tately minuete. e Y
'??i Tegand telll the story of old Gabe a £wemiier slavo, a fine
| l;ngor and fiﬂdler. who probabdbly fiddled for the danocers.

; g(; As‘the villago inoreased in numbers and the surrounding country-
o

fide became morcthiokly settded, it becsme evident that there was

4/need for a store. Ceptain Bonny of 0xford, Ohlo erected the first

store and Sylvester Stillson was the first store keeper.

Among his many wares , bhe was sure to bave & good supply of enuff
-for the 014 ladies of that day. Many store-keepers ocperated the
store in the years that followed.

In 1865 Mr. Edward Hawes returned from Jowa, where he had
moved some time before, and started in the mercantile business
usaiﬁ. He opersted h;n store ffffor the next 60 years and upon his
8eath 1% was taken over by bis daughter, Miss Lanra Hawes. In 1917
sbe s0ld to ¥r. Lcuih Foley, who hed been helping her with the store
since 1900. .

At that time the store kesper bought most of his things in bulk
and weighed and packaged them in his store. There wers berrels of
sugar, plokles, nails, coffee beans, (every home had & coffee grinder
80 they were sure sometbing else was not sdded to thier coffeo )
end then there was the oracker barrel, from which many a emsll hand v
was given a free treat. ¥
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IN the 1830's and 4o's many small businesses $that made Hdat—mwde
1ife easler for the oitisenry came %o Fairhaven. Charles Plerce
Yegan shoe making., Johm Silvers started a blaoksuith shop, and
Hemilton Briggs built a shingle faotory. Then there were three
tailor shops which tﬁmisbcﬂ the men with the best of stihlish clothes.

These were operated by Thomas Moore, Jaoob Osldwell and David
Lough. After them came Wolf Degginger and Greenfield. They were Jews
aud 414 e fine tuisness here for many years. We think they must have
ocoupied rooms in the north end of the Bunker Hill Tavern. As the
f.t;ldor residents there used to tell bow they hung geese in packs and
‘stuffed them with food so they would be fat and big 1ivers.

Hr Jacob Norris had a brick kilm and was ready at a moments notioce
to start firing briocks for buildings. He erected almost every briock
building in the town. Stephen Jdnos had a eaddlers shop where you
oould buy anything from a hitehing strap to a fine 'mau or a nice
set of harness.

Kr. Pisher and lr. Hunsaker had & Tin and Stove store and they
made all kinds of tin ware and spouting. ( Mr. Figher wag the Grand-
father of Russell MoDivitt, Marion Pigher, and Nellie Iybrook and
other desoondonte in our communith, )

In the early 16840's Joel Eperly built a large pork slaughtering
house where he carried on an extensive business in pork packing for
several years. At the same time James Phillips bad s cooper shop
whore he made barrele for the pork and lard packing business.

About the same time a saw millf and grist mi11 were built,

These were a great benefit to the people in thipg seotion of the eountry
88 they saved them many miles in teaveling over very poor roads.
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In the 1840'se also & f£ine pike was built from Richmond to Hamilton
end in 1847 e splendid wooden covered bridge was completed across Four
‘Mile oreek at the northern edge of ‘the village.

The contractors end builders were John Wiley and S8ilas Glover, who
also had & saw mill just south of the bridge.

It was a two lane bridge with a partition in the middle. For many
years ojly one side of the bridge was used, especially at night, as
Chalies .-fiorca's sheep slept in the other. The bridge was painted
red and known as tho "old red bridge.”

' In the early days these words were painted on a board on the south
end of the bridge _

The genius of man is hard to discover
This bridge was built by Silas and Glover

i inside the bridge there was a notice whioch to0ld people they shiuld
post no bills, drive no nails. At a later time someone had added "hang
no horses by their tails." Horses Bhied at poat?rs. eapocially‘f they
were loose at one corner and were fluttering in the breeze.

Sleigh riders often had to get out and walk through the covered
bgidges besanse there was no snow in the br;dsen fpr.the runners to
glide on. ,

? For 64 years it weathered the stoms and gales. Then during a flood
éono of the sbutments were loosened and washed out and the old bridge
ial to be repaired. When tye repairdrero finished the Co. Commissioners
had it repainted white, much to the sorrow of the local citizens.

After the days of beavy motor truck travel in the 1930's the old

bridge wae struck many times by drivers who were in to much of a hurry
to keep to their side of the bridge. About 4P. M., Friday May 4, 1840

the 014 bridge was struck by a trailor truck loaded with 12 tons of
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potatoes bound from Michigan to 6incinnati. It knooked the entire sast
side out of the bridge and the truck went into the creek.

;rhe commissioners decided aghinat repairing the o0ld ocovered bridge
and put in a temporary ome on piling, as they thought the road would be
straightened before many yoara. However the temporary one is still ai;:
the traffio. _

At one iime during its oonsiruetion-they felt pressured into work-
ing on tﬁo bridge on Sunday. A petition was oircnluted in the two chur-
ohas one Sunday morning and also in the oommunity and the Sundaywork
wag atoppad.

About the time the pike was finished Mr. Vorhees of Hamilton re-
ceived the oontradt to carry the mail rrop Ham;;ton to Riochmond. His
stago coach, in which he carried the mail, was drawn by four beautiful
agray horses. He always drove throush the street blowing his homn,
much to the delight of the village youngsters. %+

This story waes handed down by some 0ld timer. At the time Mr.
Robert Beckett hauled the mail from Hamilton to Fairbaven » there
came & heavy snow. Bob had no sleigh but Mr. Jim Henry had. Jim offer-
ed to sell his sleigh for ten dollars or rent it for fifty ocents a day.
Mr. Beokett chose to rent and hauled the mail for 90 consecutive days
in the sleigh. Sounds unbelisvable now. One of Jim Henry favorite
sayings was "the lame and the lazy are luokyl He no doub$ felt luoky
on the deal. We don't know how Mr. Beckett folt.

. Mr. Gilbert owned the omnibus line and carried passengers through
the town daily. He always drove six horses to the omnibus.

Over the years the town always had at least one Dr.and sometimes

moTe.
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f,iho people earli folt the nsed of a oburch in the villsge. The
Au;oolnta Reformed Presbyterisn Churoh et their meetinrg in OGreeafisld
~ Oot. 1834 est off sbout £ifty familiem from the Hopwell Congregstion
%0 be known ss the Felr Haven Congregation. The people leased & one
aore lot from Dr. ilexander Porter and built s brick ohurch 60255 fest.
HRe Devid Ritchie was the contractor and builder., It wee bogun in the
dutumn of 1834 and finished in the epring of 1836. The Pirst pastor
iul Jereniah Moryow, son of & former Ohlo governor. He begen bis labors
in May 1835, end was pastor until 1842 when, on scoount of failing
. bealtb,be resigned. The chitrch wus prectically vacant from the fall
of 16(1 until Z¢47 the spring of 1845. The Presbytory met at Concord
Ohio\Aﬁril 11 1845 and & o0all was made out for Reve. John Reynolds
whioch he mocepted. He began his ladors in Apeil 87,1845 end died Sept.
3, 1846. In the epring a csll was mede out foxr Reve J.Ye Scouller,
and was sccepted Jme 1847, He Served the Churck 43,-'5v Joanis

During bis pastorate on Hay @oyabsdotiduredfondd pas@Merian
May 26 /1§ 5% +re Asseciate  Pres byferian

Chursh. and issoclate Reformed Presbyterisn Churoh merged to fomm the
United Presbyterisn Oburch. _

In 1867 the oburoh wes taken down, end a new brick one built on
the same aight. lir. Coxzon was the contrsctor and builder. ( When kr.
| Coxon was bullding the churck "m. Tarsh, seeking information himself,
said to ur.’coxon.many people hafo asked me hoy much you are getting
for bullding tbis church? Hr. Coxon's snewer was ~the nexf one who
aske you Just ssy you don’'t knowl. Hﬁ:ﬁvor the recorde tell that the
70x43 foot structure cost ¥5828.38 end was finished in iec. 1867.

churob buildings were plain and unitarian. Four wells and roof that

344 not leak was all that was oconsidered necessary. colid pulpite «an
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end pews wore not designed to please the eye nor be ooufortable.

The worahip was simple and ‘austere. Sormons were for the most part
dootrinal and ailmed ut teaching the beliver about Sod and his Gosigne
for men. Jongregational participation was at a minium. 3inging was
restrioted to the metrical verse on the “salms without the sid of un
inetrument, exoept a tuning ford. 3inging was for the glorxy of God,
.and if the one "lining-out" could uot keop on the tuns, it never seemed

" - @ serious problem. Important wss ths lntent and the signifance of what

- of what was beiag expresscd--not the mmaio.

;oc0ording to the old Congregutionsl leetings minute book, on .uge
23, 1890 a meeting was called for the purpose of considering o motion
that the word "male” be striken out of the church constitution. 'he
vote showad 20 yaé and 4 no. The motion wes then made and carried that
the aumending be postsposd until the next annual mestinge On Jan. 31,
1891 o vofe,waa again taken and the motion carried. NHext a paper was
to be oiroulated smong the sbsent members requesting them to vote.

On Jan,30, 1893 the ammondment cfflci#ll# beosxe a part of the consti-
tution. Up nhxityihQa.tiﬁi only the men of the church had been permitts
to vote. Ilat;eékea back throagh the ohurch coustitution and the word
"male" had.bgén orossed out ).

On Jsn. £7, 19128 & m;tion wﬁs mado‘and oafriel that an drsan be
bought for the prayer ro-m,whioh was o small upstairs rooﬁg ( 1 under=-
stand thet some of the older membsrs refused to sing with it. ) is
time went on however ths orgen and éventually a pilano beoame an aooppte
'part of the ssrvices. _

In 1924 the prayer room was enlarged to sccommodate faoilities
for e dining roo -
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for a dining room and slso be used for Sunday School classes.

?In 1957 an annex was put to the north side ot‘thb'ehurch. It inoludd

~ze8t rooms & kitoben and a large room for many congregational uséﬁ.

It is known as Fellowship Hall, and &bs added greatly to the usefulness
of the entire building. . | ‘ .
... The bi€ for it , inoluding kitchen equiptment, was let to Nepier
: bros.'of Cottoge Grove Ind. and was torr17.892.173'f '

. .- Few incidents have marked the history of this oburch. She bas done
ber work quietly and has tried to meet her responsibilities aifiing

fgbm ber surroundings and from the general progress of the age.
‘ Methodiats

" In 1840 a fow Methodists begen holding meetings in Mr. Phillips

:cﬁopér shop and also at the residence of :oaeph Groon._'At that time

- the Methodist of thia pert of the country belonged. to the Ohio Con-

'..ference. Later the Cincinnati Conference was organized and this section

r;wns taken into it. They became part of the Camden cirouit. ,

In 1862 Hannsh Dunn gave the lot the churoh now stands on, to the
. people to build a Methodist chﬁroh. The.oontraot was given to Joseph

M?;Eane and on Oot. 29,1849 the completed 50x40 structure was dedicated,

having cost $900. |

~Storms of adversity however soon swopt Fairhaven ubthodiam into
”diiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂhnt and temporary oblivien. w1th1n a year of completion

 'tha plaater tell from the ceiling. ‘then came dobt. cmbarrasnment.
court proceodinga and finally on Har. 12. 18556 tho floor was ‘broken
down by a noisy railroad election meeting held in the church contrary
'to the order of the trustees.

Discouragment. was so manfest that an effort to have the floor re-



paired falled und on Apr. 6, 1865 the trustees deoided to ask the
Cemé@on Juarterly Conference to eiapose of the building andy discontinme
the Feirhaven eppointment.

Two years later, hbwovar. the Reve G+ H. Dart, 21 years old, suc-
geeded in reviving the sooiety. Braving the discoursging conditions,
‘ne arranged for a revival service and in due time had a dedicated
congregation started again. The Church was repairsd end from that time
on Methodiem had progressed ocontincallye.

In the summer of 1871 the Fairbsven and Suger Valley appointments
purcheced the present parsonuge lot of 1 1/5 aores form W. 0. Swan
for $200. There the first parsonage was built, In 1903 aend 4 it wae
moved for a barn and the present s%hstantial per-onage araoted. Pastor
Chapmen bimself designed the whole struoturs.

On Oct. 18, 1873 et the gquarterly conference the Sugsr Valley end
Fairhaven sppointments were struok off from the Camden circuit and
became a seperate ocharge, having their own prescher in thoir own parsons;

Farly in 1882 the society was encouraged to leunch g new bnilding
echeme end on April 4, 1883 the contract wes let to R. C. Duvell and
Wileon Pottenger for $3,302. In June 1ightning struok the spire ana
coused damoge whioh raiped the total ocost to $3,500. The work was com=
platoﬂ and on Sept. 2, 1883 the bnilding was dediocated.

| I 1923 under the pastorate of Rev. lgver the annex building was
eruuted at a cost of £3138.. Moet of thie building was done by the men
of the church. This additionsal 60:30. provided snd excellent social

life building and was dedlosted on Decs 27, 1923,
Sinoe then the church has contimied to faithfully serve the comunit
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sshool

helizion and education usually go hana 1n band, end as soon a8
the ‘sos00iste ieformed Church ves tinibbed 8 s0bool wes startsd 1m'thoir
seseion boues. sfter a time that builcing became too semsll to ;ogamodat
the pupile. 4 fraxe building of two roome was ereoted where thoVSéhooI-
bouse now stands. In 1857 that was repluced by e larger brick bullaing
end in 1882 snother bullding of two rooms was erected on the some 014
sites In 1891 & third room bzd to be added.

at that time they bud gredoes le £, S+ 4o in one room with ona teaoh-
or; grades 6, 6, 7, 8, in enothor room with one tssoher; and géadoa
9, 10, 11 in the third rcom with one teacher. For graude 12 thg qhginren
went to MoOuffey at Nxford, Nhis. Their tuition being paid by the
looal school unit. o /

*his ssrved their sduoational needs until 1914, when the old build-
ing was badly in need of repairs aud udditional epsce. 7ho bid 76T the
necessary ropairs etc. ssemed rather high eo the Bosrd or nﬂnaqzion
decldel to as® for s bond fssue aund rebuild complstely. The bdﬁd issue
of §7000. carriesd. They added to this $3000, alroaay on handnqtnonay
that bad besn collsocted from tuition pupile) to make thc ncothqary

# 10,000 for the new building. This building slong with anothet of uxe/
8i2¢ at & neighboring town, served the township for 12 grades of aoubol
until 1928, |

In 1958 the state Dapt. of ducation 1naioéfec thst tho ohartar
for ligh School would bdbe ravoxoa i aadltional 1591111190 were nat
nade avallable. .t the general 8lsction the voters turnoa Qﬁt; s will -
levy for a new building. ' _/,'3 ,“

The fall of 1529 saw the children from graldes ©, 103 11, 12. being
eont to neighdoring schools onf a tuition dasis. a few wunt 1Q "ountrey
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atﬁ Oxford, 6hio, a few to Union sbhool_ in College Corner Ohio, shd the
bulk of them to them to Dixon a E:;gf:::ﬁggwtpzzitzh: tuition of {65.
a year, per pupil. was paid to.plxo hy the State Depte.

_ The children were all of basiocally rursl background and soon felt
quite at home in their new surroundings.

As time went on State School Laws were ohaﬁsod;-éﬁﬂ children gy
eould no longer be sent to neighboring townships on s tuition dasis,
unless the local school unit wanted to pay the tuition. At that time
sobool boards could coneolidate townsbips without it being put to a
vote of the poopln, In 1952, after seversl very heated school board
meetings, Iarasl and Diven Twps. were oonaoiidatod. The school boards
in both townships resigned and the Co. School office picked s new
five member school board to serve.

In the fall of 1953 the seventh and eighth srado children were

taken to the Dixon building. Sinoe then we bave bad fust grades 1, 2,
3,4,6,6 left in the Fairhaven (Israel Twpe) building. To'nnhip pop~
ulation had grown to where we oould comfortably use the entire build~

Sept 1964 - Fanbosen Lg-«,
ing for the smaller children. x e e

1979 - DR 13a LYK

During the Civil War the echool house was a meeting place for the
Ladies Societies which met to prepare boxes of clothing and food for
the boys in blue. Thoy also sent boxes to hospitals.

In the early 1890's the village and community erected & monument
in the cemetry to the 18 boys whose bodies were never brought home.
It is of Vermont Berry Granite with a g8ranite ocannon ball weighing
800 pounds on the top of it,

al
The dedicatorile address was given by Colomel Andrsw L. Harris

#- M‘/— - JBM &A& 4(‘L J—Qﬂ- o Eo E:_-[c“‘-\;@n_;c-’.\-ui, }C]
g5 et > tonit ,76V,,/*’ 7979
TP B v & “we{ L—ov..h.tco ML..N( '
Nuf.dilmtﬁﬁs_giAﬂ_ Al Fourndortnr o V1563 ag @ Yudid s b ST dor P

Palore. abe duea. 5y
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of the 76th 0. U. 1. teveral of ths boys belongsd td hie regiment.

' The big winter time eport Sor the young people, was cossting from
the seknol heoupe down te the cénter of town. Then too thers wae also
foe akating on the Ebﬁr ¥4le Cyeek. 1IN the summer time tbere wss picnio:
ball gemes, and poois) petherines to take pp the free time. Of couresd
each child had daily 1sbors to be taken ears of rirat.

ilthough Four !ile oreek wer admired by evoryone, ocoongionally,
in rsiny springs, that adairatisn turned teo fear. the eametimee ot
out of hor benke end csme rushing dewm the streets and ocessionslly
into some of the bouses. .

In the 1850's the Pour iile Velley R. R. wans graded from Hamilton
to Pairhaven, but through rsseality of some of the company officdsls,
who 8iseppearcd with the meney, it fell through with end the peorle
lost their monsye. .

The omnibtue pessenger servioces snd the conestogs wagons were 1atar
replaced by esrriepes, buggies, end nice 1izbt wegons. Then in & ebort
while the stepe ond ommibus horns woere repleced by the horne of tko
bhorselese carrisgee that were beginning to aprears

sg & result of the Industrisl Revelutinn, the emgll businesees that
were oo necogsary to a pioneer cecrmunity,graduslly gave wey to the etor
in to the bigger towns. (Dften the Co. seat) The automebdbile end better
roods made it possible for poople to go a greater distance to supply
thsigrnseda. _

18 time hae gone on bdusinesses in Pairbaven KE/# beve deslined
unt $1 today there is one grocery store owned und opérated by “exter
Gant and one gurage, owned wud opersted by Herbert Jaokson.
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